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QUESTION 1 

The RFP states that "high resolution forest cover mapping imagery and analysis is requested." Is the 
request really for forest cover imagery or just processing of existing imagery? (Based on the budget, I'm 
assuming the latter, but wanted to make sure.)  

Answer: - We are asking for analysis of existing imagery, including existing LIDAR.  Sorry for the 

confusion. 

 

QUESTION 2 

St Albans City is listed among the study areas. The currently available LIDAR for St. Albans is old (2008 I 
think). Will the new LIDAR data be available in time for this project and is that the expected source for 
imagery? 

Answer:  We don’t think there will be new LIDAR for that area before the deliverable due date of this 

project. 

 

QUESTION 3 

The RFP notes High Resolution forest cover mapping imagery and analysis is requested for the 9 

municipalities. Does this mean that you are looking for new imagery to be flown or would historical 

imagery from the State of VT be used? 

Answer:  Current imagery should be used. 

 

QUESTION 4 

If historical imagery is to be used, can you provide information as to whether the available imagery for 
this area was taken at a timing of Leaf-On and what time of year? Also, what would the resolution of the 
imagery be? 
 

Answer:  We are looking for the contractor to use the imagery which will give the best product.  Either 

newest, or best resolution, or leaf on whatever makes for the best product.  The objective of this analysis 

is to duplicate, with existing data resources available in Vermont, to the maximum extent possible, an 



analysis similar to what was described as Tree Canopy Cover Analysis Methods on page 21 of the 

University of Minnesota’s User Support Manual: Estimating Nutrient Removal by Enhanced Street 

Sweeping (Paula Kalinosky, Lawrence A. Baker, Sarah E. Hobbie, Ross Bintner, and Chris Buyarski) 1.  

The resolution should be 1 meter.  

1 http://larrybakerlab.cfans.umn.edu/sites/g/files/pua2081/f/kalinosky-et-al.-2014.-street-sweeping-

guidance-manual-final-9-24-2014.docx 

 

QUESTION 5 

In addition to the raster dataset deliverables, we understand that a report is required. What type of 
analysis information do you hope to have produced in the report? – for example number of trees per 
buffered area, average tree heights or? 
 

Answer:  We would expect a report summarizing the methods and provide general findings on a 

municipal boundary basis, with the data at a minimum consistent with the data reported out to the 

University of Minnesota study referenced in the previous question as well as the four deliverables 

described in the RFP (Tree canopy coverage raster dataset, Tree canopy height model, estimate of Tree 

canopy volume, Tree canopy density within buffered area) 

 

QUESTION 6 

Are you looking for the tree canopy volumes to be percentages of area within the buffers or something 
more rigorously calculated to determine phosphorous loads? 

Answer:  Percent cover is sufficient. 

 

QUESTION 7 

Can you provide the edge of pavement GIS dataset? 

Answer: No, we would expect the contractor to complete the buffer analysis consistent with the method 

shown in Figure 3 on page 23 of the above referenced manual. 

 

QUESTION 8 

Can you provide the buffer area GIS dataset? 

Answer:  Yes, we can provide the buffer area GIS dataset from the road centerline of the municipally 

swept streets.   

 

  

http://larrybakerlab.cfans.umn.edu/sites/g/files/pua2081/f/kalinosky-et-al.-2014.-street-sweeping-guidance-manual-final-9-24-2014.docx
http://larrybakerlab.cfans.umn.edu/sites/g/files/pua2081/f/kalinosky-et-al.-2014.-street-sweeping-guidance-manual-final-9-24-2014.docx


QUESTION 9 

Is there a specified definition for canopy volume or can we decide what definition of canopy volume 
from the literature we wish to use? 

Answer:  The contractor can define the canopy volume metric. 

 

QUESTION 10 

Canopy volume requires a relationship to be established between the LIDAR and ground reference data. 
This is particularly challenging in Vermont as the data are leaf off. What ground reference data currently 
exist to establish this relationship or is ground reference data collection to be accomplished within the 
$5000 budget? 

Answer:  We have no project specific ground reference data.  Again, we would expect the analysis to be 

done consistent with the Minnesota study, we would defer to the contractor on the best choice of ground 

reference data available.   

 

QUESTION 11 

How is “tree canopy density” defined? 

Answer:  Tree density is typically defined as number of stems (trees)/unit area. The contractor can 

propose alternative density metrics. 

 

QUESTION 12 

Is $5,000 the maximum limiting funds for both the aerial data collection and the development of the 

deliverables?  Is aerial data collection not included in the scope? 

Answer:   Aerial data collection is not included. The contractor should use all existing data sources.  The 

Cities of Burlington, Montpelier, South Burlington and St Albans have also previously completed tree 

canopy surveys.  Yes, $5000 is the maximum available funds. 

 

 


